

Physical Intervention Policy Matlock & Dales Primary Partnership

Review: Annually

Version	Date	Narrative	Minute No.	Review Date
1	AS: 6.9.22	No amendments	FGB/2223/060922/15	September 2023
	DCT: 5.10.22		FGB/2223/051022/15	
	St. G: 13.9.22		FGB/2223/130922/15	
1	29th August 2023	Summer review of policies.	RMC/2223/290823/1	August 2024
		This policy is to be adopted across the partnership of schools.		
		No amendments.		
	AS: 23.1.24	Revised policy from	FGB/2324/230124/15	September 2024
2	St. G: 24.1.24	DDAT	FGB/2324/240124/14	
			Bakewell: FGB/2324/120224/13	



Physical Intervention policy

December 2023

Approved by the Trust Board on: 18th December 2023

Contents

- 1. Statement of Intent
- 2. Terminology and definitions
- 3. Positive support
- 4. Supporting children with SEND, medical conditions or childhood trauma
- 5. Reasonable force and the law
- 6. Use of physical intervention and reasonable force
- 7. Training for staff
- 8. Reporting and monitoring incidents
- 9. Post-incident support for children, parents and staff (de-briefing)
- 10. Complaints

Appendices

- Appendix 1: Advice for all staff (to be shared at least annually as part of staff training)
- Appendix 2: Suggested de-escalation techniques
- Appendix 3. Physical intervention incident reporting form
- Appendix 4: Physical Intervention risk assessment
- Appendix 5: Legal Framework
- Appendix 6: Roles and responsibilities

1. Statement of Intent

Derby Diocesan Academy Trust (the Trust) aims for every school to 'provide safe, calm, orderly and positive' environments (DfE 2022: 6) where every pupil can 'experience life in all its fullness' (Trust vision).

All staff within the Trust aim to enable positive behaviours and to positively address challenging and unsafe behaviour.

The purpose of this policy is to make clear the position of the Trust with regards to appropriate physical intervention and to safeguard children and staff when a situation or incident requires the use of physical intervention.

Physical intervention and the use of force are only to be used after all attempts to deescalate a situation have failed or when children, staff or property are at immediate risk.

2. Terminology and Definitions

Behaviour plans are a document drawn up by a team around a pupil (including SENDCO, teaching staff and parents). They are used to support inclusion and minimise episodes of dysregulation. Please note that these are referred to as Behaviour Risk assessments within Derbyshire local authority.

Emotional dysregulation refers to difficulty in regulating emotions. It can manifest in several ways, such as feeling overwhelmed by seemingly minor things, struggling to control impulsive behaviours, or having unpredictable outbursts.

De-escalation all staff seek to reduce a pupil's emotional dysregulation by consistently using positive strategies to support and enable safe behaviour, in line with the school's behaviour and SEND policies. Specific guidance for some children (including those with SEND) may be included within the child's supporting records and practice.

Positive support the graduated approach of responding to pupils' emotions, learning and behaviour with the intention of protecting pupils and staff. This approach seeks to provide a safe, calm, orderly and positive environment. Further guidance is set out in Section 4.

Physical intervention any situation in which physical contact with a pupil is necessary to manage their conduct to ensure their own or others safety – this includes reasonable force, e.g. to defuse a situation in which a pupil is at risk of harming themselves or others, and safe touch, e.g. comforting a pupil in emotional distress.

Physical Intervention Risk assessment when staff consider that a pupil's actions might necessitate the use of physical intervention, a risk assessment must be completed using the format in Appendix 4 (NB: this is not to be confused with the

behaviour risk assessment forms used within Derbyshire LA by the Behaviour Support Service).

Reasonable force the broad range of actions that may be used by teachers/pupil facing colleagues that involves a degree of physical contact with pupils. Force is usually used with the purpose to either to control and/or restrain.

Restraint means to physically intervene and hold back or to bring a pupil under control using approved holds (where this is reasonably practicable). It is typically used in more extreme circumstances, for example when two pupils are fighting and refuse to separate without physical intervention.

Safe touch physical contact which, if avoided, would be inhumane, unkind or cause distress to a pupil, e.g. where a pupil is significantly distressed and in need of physical comfort.

3. Positive support: reducing the need for physical intervention

- 3.1 School expects all staff to actively plan for children to learn within safe, calm and orderly environments.
- 3.2 School implements an approach of prevention, to avoid, where possible, all physical intervention. All teaching staff will be trained in:
 - altering the environment to minimise distressing stimuli;
 - adapting planning provision to further reduce escalation recognising warning signs of severe pain or distress and/or aggressive behaviour;
 - communicating empathetically with pupils displaying such signs to aid them in regulating their emotions and de-escalate.

Further guidance and advice is provided in Appendix 1 and Appendix 2 and is to be used as a basis for regular staff training (see Section 7).

- 3.3 The school's SENDCO will support staff by actively planning for risk. This will involve working with children, parents and staff to establish positive behaviour plans and Physical Intervention Risk Assessments for identified children who may become dysregulated.
- 3.4 Teaching staff will be made aware of the medical conditions, behavioural patterns and levels of need of pupils in their class and will ensure that incidents of disruptive or aggressive behaviour in the classroom are handled in line with individual pupils' needs.
- 3.5 Staff will *not* resort to use physical intervention and force without first questioning whether:

- There are actions that can be taken to remove triggers from pupils, e.g. dimming the lights and encouraging quiet where a pupil goes into crisis/becomes dysregulated in response to sensory overstimulation.
- The pupil can be removed from the situation without physical intervention, e.g. if they will follow a member of teaching staff out of the classroom.
- Verbal de-escalation can be attempted, using positive language.
- The pupil has a condition or support needs that mean physical intervention would be inherently more dangerous, e.g. asthma which may be made worse by restrictive holds or sensory issues where physical touch would contribute to sensory overload and may provoke aggressive behaviour.
- They have the ability, training and adequate support to physically intervene safely without causing unnecessary harm to the pupil or themselves.

4. Supporting children with SEND and medical conditions

4.1 The school will have due consideration to the risks posed by the additional vulnerability of pupils with SEND and additional medical needs in terms of physical intervention and reasonable force.

The school's SENDCO will ensure that the stipulations of the Equality Act 2010 are adhered to in relation to reasonable adjustments, non-discrimination and the Public Sector Equality Duty.

- 4.2 The school's SENDCO will work with appropriate staff to ensure that they are aware of children who may have experienced adverse childhood experiences (ACEs) and/or trauma.
- 4.3 To reduce the occurrence of challenging behaviour that could result in the use of physical intervention the SENDCO will establish Behaviour Plans and Physical Intervention Risk Assessments for pupils with SEND and, where appropriate, for those who may have previously experienced ACEs and/or trauma.
- 4.4 The school's SENDCO will ensure that all staff that come into regular contact with pupils with medical conditions, and Individual Health Care Plans, are aware of the ways in which their needs can be met without physical intervention.

5. Reasonable force and the law

5.1 Guidance on the use of reasonable force by is provided within: Use of reasonable force: Advice for head teachers, staff and governing bodies (Department for Education, 2013).

For the purpose of this policy, the term 'reasonable force' covers the broad range of actions that may be used by staff that involves a degree of physical intervention with pupils.

- 5.2 All members of school staff are legally allowed to use reasonable force. Section 93 of the Education and Inspections Act 2006 allows the use of reasonable force for all adults who are authorised by the Headteacher/Executive Headteacher/Head of School to be responsible for pupils, to use such force as is reasonable to prevent a pupil:
 - > Causing personal injury, injury to others or damage to property;
 - Engaging in any behaviours prejudicial to maintaining good order and discipline;
 - Committing a criminal offence (or for younger children that which would be an offence).
- 5.3 All staff should not hesitate to act in the situations above (5.2), provided they implement this policy and as long as all appropriate adaptations and approaches have been undertaken (such as those outlined in Section 3) including:
 - providing effective support (including the approaches set out within a risk assessment or additional support documentation);
 - ensuring effective quality first teaching

Where possible, those colleagues in receipt of higher-level training should be called upon in the first instance if this is possible/circumstances allow.

5.4 Reasonable force can be appropriate to *control* a dangerous situation.

Control means either:

- passive physical contact, such as standing between pupils or blocking a pupil's path, or
- active physical contact such as moving or guiding a pupil.
- 5.5 All physical intervention (whether active or passive) must be reasonable and proportionate to the circumstances and age of the pupil.
- 5.7 Failure to physically intervene with a pupil who is subsequently injured, or injures another pupil, could lead to an accusation of negligence.
- 5.8 Physical intervention will never be used as a substitute for effective, positive behaviour management in accordance with the school's behaviour policy.

6. Appropriate use of physical intervention

- 6.1 All members of staff are permitted to use physical intervention where they deem it to be appropriate, as along as all necessary adaptations and precautions are in place.
- 6.2 As set out above (5.2), staff may physically intervene to prevent pupils:
 - Causing personal injury, injury to others or damage to property;
 - Engaging in any behaviours prejudicial to maintaining good order and discipline;
 - Committing a criminal offence (or for younger children that which would be an offence).
- 6.3 Wherever possible, staff should use the training they have received when physically intervening. However, in an emergency situation where an intervention is still urgently needed (to prevent harm to self and/or others/damage to property) untrained staff may still physically intervene. Staff must follow the legal principles set out within Section 5 and provide a reasonable and proportionate response to the situation they are presented with, only when all other options and adaptations have been explored where and when possible.
- 6.4 Staff will always communicate calmly the reasons for their actions to the pupil(s) when intervening.
- 6.5 The degree of force used whilst physically intervening will depend on the pupil's circumstances (including age, identified SEND and medical conditions).
- 6.6 All physical intervention will be reasonable and proportionate. This means using no more force than is needed and for no more time than is necessary. As with all issues related to caring for, developing and teaching the pupils, the decisions made will be in light of the best available knowledge at the time.
- 6.7 All incidents of physical intervention will be:
 - Recorded, analysed and reported as outlined in section 8;
 - Followed by post-incident support as outlined in section 9;

7. Training for all staff

7.1 All staff working in school should be trained on this policy. Ongoing training on this policy should be undertaken at least annually, alongside the locally agreed behaviour policy.

- 7.2 The Trust's Safeguarding Training Professional Development Framework provides the specific training requirements for DSLs and senior staff. In summary: specific training on positive handling/physical intervention will be determined by the Headteacher/Executive Headteacher at least annually based upon the contextual needs of the school(s) for which they are responsible for.
- 7.3 All staff should continue to seek advice from the school's SENDCO and ensure that that they are aware and able to effectively provide all planned approaches.

8. Reporting and monitoring incidents

- 8.1 All incidents of physical intervention should be recorded on the Incident reporting Form (Appendix 1) or, where possible, recorded on the school's secure safeguarding system. It is the responsibility of the intervening member of staff to report the incident on the day that the intervention took place and to inform the school's leadership team.
 - Schools using CPOMS: Under the category 'Physical Intervention', identifying which interventions were used, and submit to the DSL and Headteacher/Executive Headteacher/Head of School.
 - MyConcerns: When triaging the concern, select the category: Physical Intervention – High.
 - School's MIS: Link the recorded incident.
- 8.2 The report of the incident must be thorough and include as much detail as possible as to identify:
 - What happened before the incident.
 - What happened during the incident.
 - What happened after the incident.
 - What injuries, if any, were sustained. If injuries were sustained, the appropriate accident record forms must be completed.
- 8.3 A member of the school leadership team will, as necessary, inform any agencies of the physical intervention after considering guidance (see Appendix 5).
- 8.4 Records must include reference to any first aid required following an incident. A separate accident record should be completed if there is any injury caused to staff or the pupil during the incident.
- 8.5 The Headteacher, Executive Headteacher or Head of School will ensure that parents/carers are appropriately informed on the day the intervention was used, as soon as practicably possible following the incident, and ideally before the end of the school day. Parents must also be informed if there were any injuries caused during the incident.

8.6 The Headteacher, Executive Headteacher or Head of School will review the number and types of incidents in which physical intervention have been necessary at least every term.

This will be used to:

- Identify any patterns of behaviour resulting in use of physical intervention;
- Review levels of staff confidence and compliance with the policy;
- Inform staff training needs (see Section 6);
- identify possible further adaptations and improvements to practice within school.

9. Post-incident support for children, parents and staff (de-briefing)

- 9.1 Following an incident of physical intervention, all pupils and staff members involved will be given any necessary first aid to treat injuries as soon as possible, followed by post-incident support.
- 9.2 Wherever physical intervention is used, all staff members and pupils involved in incidents will be given separate opportunities to receive post-incident support. This will enable all parties to discuss the emotional impact of the incident and ensure all are supported to move on from the incident. This will take place as soon as possible after the incident, ideally the same day, although leaders will need to consider each person's emotional regulation, ensuring all have had time to regulate emotions.
- 9.3 Post-incident support differs from the review of physical intervention.
- 9.4 For the safeguarding of both staff and student, any subsequent post incident review or investigation of the situation/incident should be led by a member of staff, not involved in the physical intervention.

10. Complaints

10.1 Parents/carers or children and young people have the right to offer comments and refer to the Trust's complaints policy in the case of any disagreement in the use of physical intervention.

Appendix 1 – Advice for all staff

Derby Diocesan Academy Trust (the Trust) believes that physical intervention of any kind should be the last resort in effectively managing positive behaviour within schools.

In the majority of cases, de-escalation and diffusion are the safe and appropriate methods of dealing with situations that might result in a threat to the health and safety of any individuals.

On extremely rare occasions it may be appropriate for staff to physically intervene with or between pupils. These rare occasions include:

- Injury, or risk of injury, to another pupil
- > Injury, or risk of injury, to a member of staff
- Serious damage to property
- ✓ Any physical intervention should be a last resort and be proportionate, reasonable and appropriate, and be done with the aim to reduce not provoke.
- ✓ All staff have an active duty of care to pupils. To take no action, where the outcome is that a pupil injures him/herself, or another, including staff, could be seen as negligence.
- ✓ Members of staff facing confrontational situations with pupils are reminded that the following behaviours can either reduce or inflame incidents, and that a brief moment of risk assessment may allow the time to decide on the appropriate action necessary.
- ✓ Staff are strongly advised not to physically stop pupils from leaving their room (also known as restrictive control). Staff should calmly provide a clear choice but, unless there is a risk of injury, should never block a pupil's exit.
- ✓ Remaining calm the ability to try and remain calm and appear relaxed is less likely to provoke. A relaxed posture and a non-threatening (CALM) stance, i.e. not toe-totoe, are recommended.
- ✓ Awareness of Space try to be aware of the space around you and avoid stepping into another individual's personal/intimate space. Try to take a step back outside the circle of danger.
- ✓ Pacing and Chasing angry people often pace around in tense situations and staff should try to avoid the temptation to follow as they attempt to help them calm down. This can be counter-productive as it may trigger an animal chase response and drive

the other person away. Where possible it is preferable for the staff member to stand still, speaking calmly, clearly and confidently – or even sit down.

✓ Intonation - when people are anxious or angry they tend to talk faster, higher and more loudly.

In a potential crisis situation staff need to deliberately speak slower, lower and more quietly

- ✓ Sideways stance, step back
- ✓ Intermittent eye contact
- ✓ Relaxed body posture
- ✓ Palms open

Think of the values of stepping back from a situation, both physically and emotionally:

- ✓ Allows a more considered response
- ✓ Time to make a 'dynamic' risk assessment and seek assistance
- ✓ Allows other person 'take up' time to make their own choices

Appendix 2 – Suggested de-escalation techniques

	Do		Don't
√	appear calm and relaxed	×	appear afraid and unsure of yourself; appear bossy, arrogant.
√	keep in contact with colleagues		
√	keep the pitch and volume of your voice calm.	×	raise your voice.
✓	feel comfortable with the fact that you are in control project a calm assured feeling that you will support de-escalation	×	invade the pupil's personal space (unless they are at risk of harming them self or others)
✓	are able to listen without becoming further dysregulated Disengage, and stay silent, if you feel this would help the pupil regulate their emotions.	×	give commands; make demands
✓ ✓ ✓ ✓	be very matter of fact if the pupil becomes agitated; be sensitive and flexible; be flexible yet consistent; be aware of body language; Maintain appropriate distance to the pupil	× × ×	make threats (Especially any that you are not able to carry out); maintain continuous eye contact (as this could lead to further dysregulation); gesticulate (this may be perceived as aggressive and provoke confrontation). invade the pupil's personal space
√ √	so you both you and the pupil are safe. be patient; be prepared to spend a considerable	* * *	fully leave the pupil in a stage of crisis. display emotions (other than calmness); argue; corner the pupil physically or psychologically (i.e. do not look to prove a point whilst the pupil is dysregulated).
if a pupils agitation increases to the verge of attack: * Acknowledge his/her feelings; * Continue with a calm, patient manner; * Always leave the pupil an avenue of escape			
✓ ✓	where possible, remain seated as long as the pupil. avoid crowding	×	get up and move towards the pupil (this could lead to further dysregulation).
√ ✓	stay appropriately close and to one side; give the pupil more space if appropriate control	×	feel you're on your own. Ask colleagues for support and help.

Appendix Three

Physical Intervention Report Form

We believe that any physical intervention should only be used when absolutely necessary. With this in mind, this form has been created to ensure that all incidents of this type are recorded. Incidents must also be documented in the Physical Intervention Log.

Name of staff member:						
Name of pupil:						
Date:						
Time:						
Location:						
Name(s) of staff member(s) who witnessed the incident:						
Informed parties (parents, social workers, police, etc.):						
Circumstances prior to the incident (including adaptations):						
Please include attempts to defuse the situation:						
Details of the incident:						
NB: Please include pupil views/pupil voice (discuss and record with pupil after the incident, once regulated)						
Details of any negative impact on other pupils:						

Reason(s) for physical intervention (please tick):					
Danger to self					
Danger to others					
Significant damage to property					
Details of the interven	tion:				
Any additional action to	aken:				
Injuries (if any) to staff members, the pupil o	oncerned or other pupils:				
Has it been necessary to complete a first aid note? Yes/No					
Damage (if any) to property:					
Recommendation(s) to further support positive inclusion:					
Headteacher/Executive Headteacher/Head of School	signature: Date:				
Signature of staff member concerned:	Date:				

Appendix 4 – Physical Intervention Risk assessment

School Logo	Name of child:		Date	e of Birth:	
	Triggers		Medical Information: (that need taking into account before physically intervening)		
Stage of Crisis:		Topography of behaviour (Describe what the behaviour looks/sounds like)		Preferred supportive/intervention (Describe strategies that should be attempted at each stage, including critical friends to mitigate risk)	
(Describe common be required)	pehaviours/situations wh	ich are known to have led to positive handli	ng being		
Anxiety					
Defensive/Escala	tion				
Crisis					
Recovery					
Depression					
Follow Up					
	I .			1	
Additional inform that can be used when holding		dling: (Describe preferred holds, standi	ng, sitting st	ating numbers and names of preferred staff and useful 'get outs'	
Plan agreed by					
Name (child)		Signed_If appropriate			
Name (parent/carer)	<u> </u>	Signed_			
Name (School staff)	Signed_				

Appendix 5: Legal Framework

This policy applies to all schools within Derby Diocesan Academy Trust and to all staff.

This policy is related to the use of physical intervention and should be read in conjunction with existing Trust policies and frameworks including:

- Child Protection and Safeguarding Policy
- Complaints policy;
- Staff Code of Conduct;
- Trust's Safeguarding Training Professional Development Framework;
- Whistleblowing policy.

As well as with the school's locally agreed:

- Allegations of Abuse against Staff, Carers and volunteer's policy
- Behaviour policy (statutory)
- Low level concerns policy
- SEND policy (statutory)

This policy has been developed in line with statutory guidance including:

- DfE 'Keeping Children Safe in Education'
- DfE (2013) 'Use of reasonable force in schools: Advice for Headteachers, staff and governing bodies.
- DfE (2018) 'Working Together to Safeguard Children'
- DfE (2022) Behaviour in schools
- HM Government (2019) 'Reducing the Need for Restraint and Restrictive Intervention'
- The Education and Inspections Act 2006

This policy has been developed in line with statutory guidance including due regard to all relevant legislation including, but not limited to, the following:

- Children Act 1989
- Education Act 2011
- Equality Act 2010

Appendix 6: Roles and responsibilities

Trust Board

- Review of the policy on the use of Physical Intervention.
- Evaluating on an annual basis instances of physical intervention to analyse how and when reasonable force is used and identify any trends.

Local Governing Body

 Responding to any complaints, in liaison with the Headteacher/Executive Headteacher or Head of School, from pupils or parents regarding the use of reasonable force (see Section 12).

Headteacher/Executive Headteacher or Head of School

- Enforcing the consistent implementation of this policy in school;
- Ensuring all staff undergo annual refresher training, alongside the school's Behaviour policy;
- Ensuring relevant staff undergo training in the use of restrictive practice, with regular refreshers, in line with the Trust's Safeguarding Training Professional Development Framework
- Maintaining the records of the use of reasonable force and evaluating on a termly basis how reasonable force and physical intervention is used.
- Supporting staff in developing risk assessments and behaviour support and care plans with regard to restrictive practices;
- Regular monitoring of such plans (with reference to the school's SEND policy).
- Handling any allegations of abuse in line with the Allegations of Abuse Against Staff Policy.
- Monitor the wellbeing of staff and access to debriefs, particularly for those who
 may be regularly involved in incidents.
- Monitor the wellbeing of children and young people and ensure they access debriefs.

The named SENDCO within school is responsible for:

- Providing, facilitating and organising training to members of staff on how to handle the identified needs of pupils with SEND.
- Ensuring all staff understand how pupils with SEND may react differently to reasonable force.
- Ensuring that staff understand the additional vulnerability of pupils with SEND or medical conditions.
- Supporting and maintaining individual risk assessments for pupils with SEND or medical conditions that are agreed with the pupil's parents, and ensuring teaching staff are aware of these.
- Ensuring plans are shared with parents/carers, other agencies, and where appropriate with the pupil or young person concerned, recognising the importance of consent in terms of the fundamental issues of respect and dignity.

- Ensuring that staff understand how reasonable force principles may need to be adapted for pupils with medical conditions.
- Evaluating on a termly basis how reasonable force and physical intervention is used with regard to pupils with SEND, in collaboration with the Headteacher/Executive Headteacher or Head of School.

All staff within school are responsible for:

- Working always in the best interests of the pupil or young person.
- Taking part in training provided in the use of de-escalation and physical intervention and consistently applying the principles and strategies taught.
- Satisfying themselves that they are clear on what they may and may not do in terms of restrictive practices, seeking clarification from the school's SENDCO and Headteacher/Executive Headteacher or Head of School as necessary.
- Familiarising themselves (as appropriate) with the specific risk assessments, Individual Health Care Plans and guidance (Appendix 1 and 2).
- Using post-incident support sessions to confirm their understanding of this policy and to seek further explanation or personal development as necessary.
- Following the recording and reporting procedures.
- Contributing to the development of behaviour support or care plans, and good practice.
- Ensuring the quality of teaching and pupil support addresses individuals needs and reduces the likelihood of restrictive physical intervention being required.